
 

 

 

July 8th, 2021 

Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 

(dba) Camden County Developmental 

Disability Resources 

Open Session Board Meeting 



Agenda 



Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 
d/b/a Camden County Developmental Disability Resources 

100 Third Street 
Camdenton, MO 65020 

 

Tentative Agenda for Open Session Board Meeting on July 8th, 2021, at 6:00 PM 
 

This Board Meeting will be held at: 
 

255 Keystone Industrial Park Drive 
 

Camdenton, MO 65020 
 

Participants can also Join via WebEx/Phone: 
 

https://camdencountydevelopmentaldisabilityresources.my.webex.com/camdencountydevelopmentaldisabilityreso

urces.my/j.php?MTID=m9b2fa6614788c8b2a30c8fb4b4e13216 
 

To Join by Phone:  1-415-655-0001 
Meeting Number (Access Code):  182 058 4845  

Meeting Password: 79844329 
 
             Call to Order/Roll Call 

 
Approval of Agenda 
 
Approval of Open Session Board Meeting Minutes for June 10th, 2021 
 
Approval of Closed Session Board Meeting Minutes for June 10th, 2021 
 
Acknowledgement of Distributed Materials to Board Members 

 

• May 2021 OSLCFDC Monthly Report 
• May 2021 CLC Monthly Report 
• May 2021 LAI Monthly Report 
• June 2021 Support Coordination Report 
• June 2021 Employment Report 
• June 2021 Agency Economic Report 
• May 2021 Credit Card Statement 
• Resolutions 2021-18, 2021-19, 2021-20, & 2021-21 

 

Speakers/Special Guests/Announcements 

• NONE 
 
Monthly Oral Reports 
 

• Our Saviors Lighthouse Child & Family Development Center 
• Children’s Learning Center  
• Lake Area Industries 
• MACDDS Updates 

 

 

 

 



 

Old Business for Discussion 

• COVID-19 Related Updates 

 
New Business for Discussion 
 

• NONE 
 

CCDDR Reports 
 

• June 2021 Support Coordination Report 

• June 2021 Employment Report 

• June 2021 Agency Economic Report 
 
May 2021 Credit Card Statement 
 
Discussion & Conclusion of Resolutions: 
 

• Resolution 2021-18:  Approval of Amended COVID-19 Plan 

• Resolution 2021-19:  Approval of Amended Policy 11 

• Resolution 2021-20:  Approval of Amended Policy 14 

• Resolution 2021-21:  Approval of Amended Policy 35 
 

Board Educational Presentation/Discussion:  CCDDR Needs Assessment & Program Feasibility Studies  
 
Open Discussions 
 
Public Comment 
 

Pursuant to ARTICLE IV, “Meetings”, Section 5. Public Comment: 
 
“The Board values input from the public. There shall be opportunity for comment by the public during the 
portion of the Board agenda designated for “Public Comment”. Public comment shall be limited to no 
more than 3 minutes per person to allow all who wish to participate to speak. It is the policy of the Board 
that the Board shall not respond to public comment at the Board meeting.” 
 
“Only comments related to agency-related matters will be received, however such comments need not be 
related to specific items of the Board’s agenda for the meeting. The Board shall not receive comments 
related to specific client matters and/or personnel grievances, which are addressed separately per Board 
policies and procedures.” 
 
Adjournment of Open Session 
 
 
 
The news media and any interested party may obtain copies of this notice, and a direct link to the WebEx 
meeting can be submitted to anyone requesting access by contacting: 
 
Ed Thomas, CCDDR Executive Director 
5816 Osage Beach Parkway, Suite 108, Osage Beach, MO  65065 
Office:  573-693-1511          Fax:  573-693-1515        Email:  director@ccddr.org 

mailto:director@ccddr.org


 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

June 10th, 2021 
 

 Open Session Minutes 



- 

CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 
 

Open Session Minutes of June 10th, 2021 
 

Members Present    Angela Sellers, Betty Baxter, Paul DiBello, Kym Jones,  
                                  Dr. McNamara, Elizabeth Perkins 
 
Members Absent:   Brian Willey, Nancy Hayes, Angela Boyd 
 
Others Present         Ed Thomas, Executive Director 
 
Guests Present         Natalie Couch, (LAI) 
          Jessica English ( CLC) 
                                  Rachel Baskerville, Lori Cornwell, Connie Baker, Jeanna Booth,  
                                  Ryan Johnson, Linda Simms (CCDDR) 

        
Approval of Agenda  
  
Motion by  Paul DiBello, second Betty Baxter, to approve the agenda as presented. 
  

       AYE:  Angela Sellers, Betty Baxter, Paul DiBello, Kym Jones,  
                  Dr. McNamara, Elizabeth Perkins 
 

                                   NO:  None 
 
Introduction of New Board Member Elizabeth Perkins 
 
Ed introduced Elizabeth Perkins and asked her to tell a little about herself.  Elizabeth provided some of 
her background information and stated she is very excited to be a member on the Board. 
 
Approval of Open Session Board Minutes May 13th, 2021 
  
A quorum was not present at the May 13th Open Session Board meeting.  Motion by Paul DiBello, second 
Betty Baxter, to approve the May 13th, 2021, Open Session Board Meeting Minutes as presented. 
  
                                 AYE:  Betty Baxter, Angela Sellers, Paul DiBello  
  
                                   NO:  None 

 
                        ABSTAIN:  Kym Jones, Dr. Vicki McNamara, Elizabeth Perkins 
                                            because they were not present at the April 8th, 2021,  
                                            Board Meeting.  
 
  Approval of Special Open Session Board Minutes May 18th, 2021 
  
Motion by Dr. McNamara, second Paul DiBello, to approve the May 18th, 2021, Special Open Session 
Board Meeting Minutes as presented. 
  
                                 AYE:  Betty Baxter, Dr. Vicki McNamara, Kym Jones, Angela Sellers,  
                                            Paul DiBello 
  



- 

                                   NO:  None 
 

                        ABSTAIN:  Elizabeth Perkins because she was not present at the  
                                            May 18th, 2021, Special Open Session Board Meeting.  
 
Acknowledgement of Distributed Materials to Board Members 
                         

 April 2021 OSLCFDC Monthly Report 
 April 2021 CLC Monthly Report 
 April 2021 LAI Monthly Report 
 2021 YTD Agency Performance Summary 
 May 2021 Support Coordination Report 
 May 2021 Employment Report 
 May 2021 Agency Economic Report 
 April 2021 Credit Card Statement 
 Resolution 2021-15, 2021-16, 2021-17, & Biannual Ethics Commission Resolution 

 
Speakers / Special Guests /Announcements 
 

 None 
 
Monthly Oral Reports 
 
Our Saviors Lighthouse Child & Family Development Center (OSLCFDC) 
Executive Director – Jessica Jensen 
 
No one was present from OSLCFDC. 
 
Children’s Learning Center (CLC) 
Jessica English 
 
18 of the 24  kids enrolled in Step Ahead have disabilities. There are 12 one-on-ones (6 full-time and 6 
part-time). One of the children is out for medical reasons and hopefully will be back for the fall session. 
Instructors are still needed. Night Glow is June 18th and runners are needed. There are 21 t-shirt sponsors 
for the event – proceeds will go to the scholarship fund. Teachers are needed for First Steps.  CLC was on 
the radio.  Classes are full for the summer session and 5 students are needed to fill the session for Fall. 
CLC has submitted some grants and will be submitting more grants in the near future. CLC is trying to 
get a new shed and kitchen equipment. 
 
Lake Area Industries (LAI)  
Natalie Couch 
 
May was a good month with a net income of $40,000 and an additional $10,000 from DESE. We had 
great sales in May.  51 of the 58 employees are CCDDR clients. Workshop has new creamer order, 2 new 
bids from Woodland Phoenix, Laker tackle project, sleds,  and 21 new orders from BCI.  LAI has a new 
client, Optic Armor in Linn Creek wanting 25 orders a week.  Shredding is busy. The garden center has 
very little inventory left and made a profit of $15,000 so far.  LAI is also VR compliant as training is 
100% complete.   
 
 



- 

MACDDS Updates 
 
Legislative Session concluded today.  Nancy Pennington is the new Executive Director for MACDDS.  
Robyn Kaufmann, the President, has retired from Boone County Family Services.  Denise Cross will 
assume the role of President. 
 
Old Business for Discussion 
 

 Covid-19 Related Updates 
 
As of today, there is a 11.9% positivity rate in Camden County.  This could be a reflection of the past 
holiday weekend.  There have been 32 cases reported in the last 7 days in the county.  The offices of 
CCDDR will be shut down to the general public if a spike in new COVID cases occurs.  We will review 
the COVID plan next month. 
 
New Business for Discussion 
 

 Potential New Monthly SB 40 Board Meeting Dates & Times 
 
A survey was completed, It looks as if the 2nd Thursday of the month is good but start meeting at 6 pm 
instead of 5 pm.   
 
Motion by  Paul DiBello, second Dr, McNamara, to change Board Meetings start time to 6 pm on the 
second Thursday of each month and to record the change in time in all necessary Board governing 
documents without having to bring to the Board individually for approval. 
 

       AYE:  Angela Sellers, Betty Baxter, Paul DiBello, Kym Jones,  
                  Dr. McNamara, Elizabeth Perkins 
 

                                   NO:  None 
 
CCDDR Reports 
 

 2021 YTD Agency Performance Summary 
 
SC’s are still struggling to get the plans in within the 21-day time frame and by the annual effective date. 
Ed is hoping this is resolved by the end of the year. 
 

 May 2021 Support Coordination Report 
 
Closed the month of May with 328 clients.  Recent discharges will cause a drop in caseloads in June. 
There are currently 5 intakes.  The agencies collection rate on Medicaid claims remains at 99%.  Ed 
praised Lori and Ryan for staying on top of clients’ Medicaid eligibility. 
 

 May 2021 Employment Report 
 
There was a little increase in community employment.  We are not seeing the same percentages as we did 
this time in years prior to the pandemic. 
 

 



- 

 
 May 2021 Agency Economic Report 

 
Budget is in good shaped. Ed backed out offsets from restricted funds since they were not needed to meet 
budgeted expectations.  A three-year lease contract for the Osage Beach office was received from Mr. 
Ezard just before the Board meeting.  Mr. Ezard received a contract from Lake Regional Hospital to buy 
the shopping center where the Osage Beach office is located. Ed is looking to expand facilities at 
Camdenton or Keystone over the next three years in hopes of consolidating the Camdenton and Osage 
Beach office. 
 
Motion by Paul DiBello, second Dr. McNamara for Ed to sign the new three-year lease contract for the 
Osage Beach facility. 
 

       AYE:  Angela Sellers, Betty Baxter, Paul DiBello, Kym Jones,  
                  Dr. McNamara, Elizabeth Perkins 
 

                                   NO:  None 
 
Motion by Dr. McNamara, second Paul DiBello, to approve ALL reports as presented. 
 

       AYE:  Angela Sellers, Betty Baxter, Paul DiBello, Kym Jones,  
                  Dr. McNamara, Elizabeth Perkins 
 

                                   NO:  None 
 
April 2021 Credit Card Statement 
  
No Questions and a vote not necessary. 
 
Discussion & Conclusion of Resolutions: 
 

 Resolution 2021-15:  Approval of Amended Employee Manual 
 
Ed gave a summary of significant changes made to the Employee Manual.  An absentee policy has been 
added to include allocated and unallocated time missed from work.  An employee who exceeds 40 hours 
per year of unallocated absences will be terminated. 
 
Motion by Paul DiBello, second Betty Baxter, to tentatively approve Resolution 2021-15 as presented. 
until the Agency Governance Committee can meet to discuss the absentee and PTO policy again.   
 

       AYE:  Angela Sellers, Betty Baxter, Paul DiBello, Kym Jones,  
                  Dr. McNamara, Elizabeth Perkins 
 

                                   NO:  None 
 

 Resolution 2021-16:  OATS Contract Renewal July 1st, 2021, to June 30th, 2022 – 
Employment Transportation 

 
This is the OATS renewal contract beginning July 1, 2021, to June 30, 2022, for transporting CCDDR 
clients to and from LAI for employment. 
 



- 

Motion by Dr. McNamara, second Kym Jones, to approve Resolution 2021-16 as presented. 
 

              AYE:  Angela Sellers, Betty Baxter, Paul DiBello, Kym Jones,  
                         Dr. McNamara, Elizabeth Perkins 
 

                                          NO:  None 
 

 Resolution 2021-17:  Contract Renewal for Auditing Services 
 
Prices have stayed consistent with current auditing service.  Evers & Evers gave us the option of a 
contract for the fiscal year 2020 audit or fiscal years 2020 to 2022.  Dr McNamara asked about changing 
auditors. CCDDR would likely publish a RFP in the future.  The board conversed and decided to go with 
current auditors for the audits 2020 thru 2022. 
 
Motion by Dr. McNamara, second Paul DiBello to approve 2021-17 for current auditing firm to do the 
audit for fiscal years 2020 to 2022. 
 

       AYE:  Angela Sellers, Betty Baxter, Paul DiBello, Kym Jones,  
                  Dr. McNamara, Elizabeth Perkins 
 

                                   NO:  None 
 

 Biannual Ethics Commission Resolution 
 
The resolution must to be submitted to the Missouri Ethics Commission every two years. 
 
Motion by Elizabeth Perkins, second Betty Baxter, to approve Biannual Ethics Commission Resolution  
as presented. 
 

              AYE:  Angela Sellers, Betty Baxter, Paul DiBello, Kym Jones,  
                         Dr. McNamara, Elizabeth Perkins 
 

                                   NO:  None 
 
Board Education Presentation/Discussion:  DMH Updates at Monthly MACDDS Meetings 
 
Ed showed a PowerPoint presentation from DMH presented at a recent MACDDS meeting. DMH updates 
MACDDS on primary topics at the given time and updates MACDDS on the budget summaries, rate 
standardization progress, waitlist is reductions, COVID-19 issues, enhanced FMAP, and other related 
I/DD topics.   
 
Open Discussion: 
 
None 
 
Public Comment: 
 
None 
 
 
 



- 

Adjournment:  
 
Motion by Paul DiBello, second Elizabeth Perkins, to adjourn open session and begin closed 
session Pursuant to Section 610.021 RSMO, subsection (1), (3), (13), (14), & (21). A voice vote was 
taken.  
 

       AYE:  Angela Sellers, Betty Baxter, Paul DiBello, Kym Jones, Dr. McNamara,  
  Elizabeth Perkins 
 
                                   NO:  None 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

______________________________________              ________________________________________ 

Board Chairperson/Other Board Member  Secretary/Other Board Member 



OSLCFDC Monthly 
Report 

 



OSLCFDC May 2021 Financial Report  

Expenses Total: $11653.39 

Quickbooks Accounting  - $      35.00 

Quickbooks Payroll   - $      65.00 ($45, plus $4/employee for direct deposit) 

Food     - $    600.00 

Total Payroll including tax  - $ 9000.00 

Taxes Paid April 2021   -  $  1418.39 

Ant Control   -  $     260.00  

Phone     -  $       75.00 

Misc    - $      200.00 

 

Liabilities - $362.02 

April State Tax    $ 153.00 

MO SUI    $   73.74  

Misc ck                                    $ 135.28 

  

 

Income Total: $12200 

Tuition/Deposit   - $8000.00 

Child Serv     - $  600.00 

Food Subsidy                                          - $1100.00 

CCDDR Subsidy    - $2500.00 

 

Income  -     $ 12200 

Expense -     $11653.39   

Liabilities -   $    362.02 

                      $ 184.59 

 



CLC Monthly Report 























LAI Monthly Report 















Support Coordination 
Report 



J 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SUPPORT COORDINATION REPORT  
 
 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

June 2021 
 

Client Caseloads 
 

• Number of Caseloads as of June 30th, 2021:  322 

• Budgeted Number of Caseloads:  330 

• Pending Number of New Intakes:  9 

• Medicaid Eligibility:  86.96% 
 

Caseload Counts 
 

Cynthia Brown – 36 
Elizabeth Chambers - 31 

Stephanie Enoch – 28 
Teri Guttman - 29 
Micah Joseph – 38 
Jennifer Lyon – 34 

Christina Mitchell - 36 
Mary Petersen – 35 
Shelah Sinner – 24 

Patricia Strouse - 31 
 



The Employment Report is 
Being Reconfigured and 

Reformatted – Anticipated 
Completion is Expected by 

October 2021 
 



Agency Economic 
Report 

(Unaudited) 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENCY ECONOMIC REPORT  
 
 

Page - 1 - of 12 

 

 

June 2021 

 

 
Medicaid Targeted Case Management Income 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page - 2 - of 12 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page - 3 - of 12 

 

 

Budget vs. Actuals: FY 2021 Budget - FY21 P&L Departments 
June 2021 

 SB 40 Tax Services 

 Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance 

Income           

   4000 SB 40 Tax Income 5,060  7,015  (1,955)    0  

   4500 Services Income    0  121,980  117,970  4,010  

Total Income 5,060  7,015  (1,955) 121,980  117,970  4,010  

Gross Profit 5,060  7,015  (1,955) 121,980  117,970  4,010  

Expenses           

   5000 Payroll & Benefits    0  78,923  101,432  (22,509) 

   5100 Repairs & Maintenance    0  8  900  (892) 

   5500 Contracted Business Services    0  5,994  6,525  (531) 

   5600 Presentations/Public Meetings    0    147  (147) 

   5700 Office Expenses    0  1,967  4,445  (2,478) 

   5800 Other General & Administrative    0  3,120  770  2,350  

   5900 Utilities    0  (127) 900  (1,027) 

   6100 Insurance    0  1,587  1,900  (313) 

   6700 Partnership for Hope 2,801  4,110  (1,309)    0  

   6900 Direct Services 16,883  98,612  (81,729)    0  

   7100 Housing Programs 6,223  6,067  156     0  

   7200 Children's Programs 18,625  20,050  (1,425)    0  

   7300 Sheltered Employment Programs 18,299  25,650  (7,351)    0  

   7500 Community Employment Programs   50  (50)    0  

   7600 Community Resources   7,735  (7,735)    0  

   7900 Special/Additional Needs   4,934  (4,934)    0  

Total Expenses 62,830  167,208  (104,378) 91,473  117,019  (25,546) 

Net Operating Income (57,770) (160,193) 102,423  30,507  951  29,556  

Other Expenses           

   8500 Depreciation    0  4,615  3,475  1,140  

Total Other Expenses 0  0  0  4,615  3,475  1,140  

Net Other Income 0  0  0  (4,615) (3,475) (1,140) 

Net Income (57,770) (160,193) 102,423  25,892  (2,524) 28,416  

 

Budget Variance Report 

 
Total Income: In June, SB 40 Tax Revenues were slightly lower than projected, and Services Program income was slightly 
higher than projected.  
 
Total Expenses: In June, overall SB 40 Tax program expenses were lower than budgeted expectations.  Housing programs 
were slightly higher than budgeted due to transitional/emergency housing assistance needed for a homeless client. It should 
be noted the OATS transportation invoices (codes 7300 & 7600) had not been received and/or recorded at the time the 
financial reports were generated, and DMH/DDD has not yet determined whether TCM allocation invoices (code 6900) will 
need to be sent out to agencies who have exceeded the TCM contract allocation formula.  Please also note 
Special/Additional Needs Expenses are lower because Medicaid Spend-down payments are still being waived during the 
extended COVID-19 emergency.  Services Program expenses are lower than budgeted in all categories except Other 
General & Administrative, which is due to legal counsel costs for reviewing specific policies, the Employee Manual, and 
specific employee issues/topics. Depreciation is also higher than budgeted due to adjustments made to the depreciation 
schedule based on the 2019 audit report.  Please note there are additional Services expenses/invoices that were not 
received/recorded at the time the financial reports were generated. 
 
 
 
 
 



Page - 4 - of 12 

 

 
 

Budget vs. Actuals: FY 2021 Budget - FY21 P&L Departments 
January - June, 2021 

 SB 40 Tax Services 

 Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance 

Income           

   4000 SB 40 Tax Income 992,552  964,222  28,330     0  

   4500 Services Income    0  840,997  763,261  77,736  

Total Income 992,552  964,222  28,330  840,997  763,261  77,736  

Gross Profit 992,552  964,222  28,330  840,997  763,261  77,736  

Expenses           

   5000 Payroll & Benefits    0  628,893  651,294  (22,401) 

   5100 Repairs & Maintenance    0  3,289  5,400  (2,111) 

   5500 Contracted Business Services    0  42,303  43,954  (1,651) 

   5600 Presentations/Public Meetings    0  753  882  (129) 

   5700 Office Expenses    0  19,431  26,670  (7,239) 

   5800 Other General & Administrative    0  20,269  18,147  2,122  

   5900 Utilities    0  3,822  5,400  (1,578) 

   6100 Insurance    0  9,522  11,400  (1,878) 

   6700 Partnership for Hope 17,604  24,660  (7,056)    0  

   6900 Direct Services 109,791  140,319  (30,528)    0  

   7100 Housing Programs 33,748  36,402  (2,654)    0  

   7200 Children's Programs 108,346  120,300  (11,954)    0  

   7300 Sheltered Employment Programs 121,998  153,900  (31,902)    0  

   7500 Community Employment Programs 61  300  (239)    0  

   7600 Community Resources 18,578  46,410  (27,832)    0  

   7900 Special/Additional Needs 3,789  29,339  (25,550)    0  

Total Expenses 413,915  551,630  (137,715) 728,282  763,147  (34,865) 

Net Operating Income 578,637  412,592  166,045  112,715  114  112,601  

Other Expenses           

   8500 Depreciation    0  27,550  20,850  6,700  

Total Other Expenses 0  0  0  27,550  20,850  6,700  

Net Other Income 0  0  0  (27,550) (20,850) (6,700) 

Net Income 578,637  412,592  166,045  85,165  (20,736) 105,901  

 
 
 

Budget Variance Report 

 
Total Income: As of June, YTD SB 40 Tax revenues were higher than projected, and Services Program income was higher 
than budgeted. CCDDR had budgeted for 27 billing periods in 2020; however, the 27th billing period was not utilized/billed 
because income was higher than originally projected for the previous 26 periods; therefore, there is an extra billing period for 
January, which was not budgeted.  Also, overall TCM billings and collections have been higher than projected. 
 
Total Expenses: As of June, overall YTD SB 40 Tax program expenses were lower than budgeted expectations.  It should be 
noted the OATS transportation invoices (codes 7300 & 7600) for April and May had not been received and/or recorded at the 
time the financial reports were generated, and DMH/DDD has not yet determined whether TCM allocation invoices (code 
6900) will need to be sent out to agencies who have exceeded the TCM contract allocation formula.  Please also note 
Special/Additional Needs Expenses are lower because Medicaid Spend-down payments are still being waived during the 
extended COVID-19 emergency.  Overall Services Program expenses are lower than budgeted expectations.  YTD Other 
General & Administrative is higher than budgeted because the final invoice for the 2019 audit from Evers CPAs was not 
received and not paid until the audit was completed in the first quarter of 2021 (budgeted for December 2020).  Depreciation 
is higher than budgeted due to adjustments made to the depreciation schedule based on the 2019 audit report.  Please note 
there are additional Services expenses/invoices that were not received/recorded at the time the financial reports were 
generated. 
 



Page - 5 - of 12 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Balance Sheet 
As of June 30, 2021 

 

SB 40 
Tax Services 

ASSETS     

   Current Assets     

      Bank Accounts     

         1000 Bank Accounts     

            1005 SB 40 Tax Bank Accounts     

               1010 SB 40 Tax Account (County Tax Funds) - First Nat'l Bank 0  0  

               1015 SB 40 Tax Reserve Account (County Tax Funds) - Central Bank 229    

               1020 SB 40 Tax Certificate of Deposit 0    

               1025 SB 40 Tax - Bank of Sullivan 1,259,601  0  

               1030 SB 40 Tax Reserve - Bank of Sullivan 0    

            Total 1005 SB 40 Tax Bank Accounts 1,259,830  0  

            1050 Services Bank Accounts     

               1055 Services Account - Oak Star Bank (Formerly 1st Nat'l Bank) 0  0  

               1060 Services Certificate of Deposit   0  

               1075 Services Account - Bank of Sullivan   272,958  

            Total 1050 Services Bank Accounts 0  272,958  

         Total 1000 Bank Accounts 1,259,830  272,958  

      Total Bank Accounts 1,259,830  272,958  

      Accounts Receivable     

         1200 Services     

            1210 Medicaid Direct Service   104,622  

            1215 Non-Medicaid Direct Service   34,543  

            1220 Ancillary Services   6,575  

         Total 1200 Services 0  145,739  

         1300 Property Taxes     

            1310 Property Tax Receivable 1,054,744    

            1315 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (19,183)   

         Total 1300 Property Taxes 1,035,561  0  

      Total Accounts Receivable 1,035,561  145,739  

      Other Current Assets     

         1389 BANK ERROR Claim Confirmations (A/R) 0  0  

         1399 TCM Remittance Advices (In-Transit Payments) 0  0  

         1400 Other Current Assets     

            1410 Other Deposits 0    

            1430 Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions   73,039  

            1435 Net Pension Asset (Liability)   (28,174) 

         Total 1400 Other Current Assets 0  44,865  

         1450 Prepaid Expenses   0  

            1455 Prepaid-Insurance 0  21,103  

         Total 1450 Prepaid Expenses 0  21,103  

      Total Other Current Assets 0  65,968  

   Total Current Assets 2,295,391  484,665  



Page - 6 - of 12 

 

   Fixed Assets     

      1500 Fixed Assets     

         1510 100 Third Street Land   47,400  

         1511 Keystone Land   14,000  

         1520 100 Third Street Building   431,091  

         1521 Keystone   163,498  

         1525 Accumulated Depreciation - 100 Third Street   (172,584) 

         1526 Accumulated Depreciation - Keystone   (30,990) 

         1530 100 Third Street Remodeling   164,157  

         1531 Keystone Remodeling   130,471  

         1532 Osage Beach Office Remodeling (Leased Space)   4,225  

         1535 Acc Dep - Remodeling - 100 Third Street   (72,691) 

         1536 Acc Dep - Remodeling - Keystone   (13,987) 

         1537 Acc Dep - Remodeling - Osage Beach Office   (4,225) 

         1540 Equipment   123,894  

         1545 Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment   (57,123) 

         1550 Vehicles   6,740  

         1555 Accumulated Depreciation - Vehicles   (6,740) 

      Total 1500 Fixed Assets 0  727,134  

   Total Fixed Assets 0  727,134  

TOTAL ASSETS 2,295,391  1,211,799  

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY     

   Liabilities     

      Current Liabilities     

         Accounts Payable     

            1900 Accounts Payable 0  50  

         Total Accounts Payable 0  50  

         Other Current Liabilities     

            2000 Current Liabilities     

               2005 Accrued Accounts Payable 0  0  

               2006 DMH Payable 0    

               2007 Non-Medicaid Payable 34,543    

               2008 Ancillary Services Payable 6,575    

               2010 Accrued Payroll Expense 0  0  

               2015 Accrued Compensated Absences 0  (2,157) 

               2025 Prepaid Services 0    

               2030 Deposits 0  0  

               2050 Prepaid Tax Revenue 0    

               2055 Deferred Inflows - Property Taxes 983,954    

               2060 Payroll Tax Payable   0  

                  2061 Federal W / H Tax Payable 0  0  

                  2062 Social Security Tax Payable 0  317  

                  2063 Medicare Tax Payable 0  0  

                  2064 MO State W / H Tax Payable 0  2,154  

                  2065 FFCRA Federal W/H Tax Credit   14  

                  2066 FFCRA Health Insurance Credit   0  

               Total 2060 Payroll Tax Payable 0  2,485  

               2070 Payroll Clearing     

                  2071 AFLAC Pre-tax W / H 0  1,146  

                  2072 AFLAC Post-tax W / H 0  150  

                  2073 Vision Insuance W / H 0  138  

                  2074 Health Insurance W / H 0  30  



Page - 7 - of 12 

 

                  2075 Dental Insurance W / H 0  (345) 

                  2076 Savings W / H   0  

                  2078 Misc W / H   0  

                  2079 Other W / H   0  

               Total 2070 Payroll Clearing 0  1,119  

               2090 Deferred Inflows   9,065  

               2091 Computer Lease Liability   68,771  

               2092 Current Portion of Lease Payable   10,116  

               2093 Less Current Portion of Lease Payable   (10,116) 

            Total 2000 Current Liabilities 1,025,072  79,283  

         Total Other Current Liabilities 1,025,072  79,283  

      Total Current Liabilities 1,025,072  79,333  

   Total Liabilities 1,025,072  79,333  

   Equity     

      3000 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances     

         3001 Operational 0    

         3005 Operational Reserves 250,000    

         3010 Transportation 20,000    

         3015 New Programs 0    

         3030 Special Needs 42,000    

         3035 Childrens Programs 42,000    

         3040 Sheltered Workshop 131,606    

         3045 Traditional Medicaid Match 0    

         3050 Partnership for Hope Match 0    

         3055 Building/Remodeling/Expansion 0    

         3065 Legal 0    

         3070 TCM 163,974    

         3075 Community Resource 0    

      Total 3000 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances 649,580  0  

      3500 Restricted Services Fund Balances     

         3501 Operational   62,974  

         3505 Operational Reserves   200,000  

         3510 Transportation   0  

         3515 New Programs   0  

         3530 Special Needs   0  

         3550 Partnership for Hope Match   0  

         3555 Building/Remodeling/Expansion   70,574  

         3560 Sponsorships   0  

         3565 Legal   0  

         3575 Community Resources   0  

         3599 Other   727,134  

      Total 3500 Restricted Services Fund Balances 0  1,060,682  

      3900 Unrestricted Fund Balances 25,991  (22,492) 

      3950 Prior Period Adjustment 0  0  

      3999 Clearing Account 30,410  (5,186) 

      Net Income 578,637  85,165  

   Total Equity 1,284,617  1,118,169  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2,309,689  1,197,502  

 
 
 
 
 



Page - 8 - of 12 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Statement of Cash Flows 
June 2021 

 

SB 40 
Tax Services 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

   Net Income (57,770) 25,892  

   Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations:     

      1210 Services:Medicaid Direct Service   (52,488) 

      1215 Services:Non-Medicaid Direct Service   (10,308) 

      1220 Services:Ancillary Services   0  

      1455 Prepaid Expenses:Prepaid-Insurance   2,651  

      1525 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - 100 Third Street   898  

      1526 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Keystone   366  

      1535 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - 100 Third Street   723  

      1536 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - Keystone   471  

      1537 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - Osage Beach Office   249  

      1545 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment   1,909  

      1900 Accounts Payable (13,503) (5,532) 

      2007 Current Liabilities:Non-Medicaid Payable 10,308    

      2008 Current Liabilities:Ancillary Services Payable 0    

      2061 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Federal W / H Tax Payable   0  

      2062 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Social Security Tax Payable   0  

      2063 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Medicare Tax Payable   0  

      2064 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:MO State W / H Tax Payable   2,191  

      2071 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:AFLAC Pre-tax W / H   625  

      2072 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:AFLAC Post-tax W / H   96  

      2073 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Vision Insuance W / H   118  

      2075 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Dental Insurance W / H   (33) 

   Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations: (3,196) (58,064) 

Net cash provided by operating activities (60,965) (32,172) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

   3599 Restricted Services Fund Balances:Other   (4,615) 

   3999 Clearing Account   4,615  

Net cash provided by financing activities 0  0  

Net cash increase for period (60,965) (32,172) 

Cash at beginning of period 1,320,795  305,129  

Cash at end of period 1,259,830  272,958  

 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page - 9 - of 12 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Statement of Cash Flows 
January - June, 2021 

 

SB 40 
Tax Services 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

   Net Income 578,637  85,165  

   Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations:     

      1210 Services:Medicaid Direct Service   (104,622) 

      1215 Services:Non-Medicaid Direct Service   2,238  

      1220 Services:Ancillary Services   (6,575) 

      1455 Prepaid Expenses:Prepaid-Insurance   2,391  

      1525 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - 100 Third Street   5,389  

      1526 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Keystone   2,196  

      1535 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - 100 Third Street   4,338  

      1536 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - Keystone   2,603  

      1537 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - Osage Beach Office   1,491  

      1545 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment   8,278  

      1900 Accounts Payable (13,479) (6,190) 

      2007 Current Liabilities:Non-Medicaid Payable (2,238)   

      2008 Current Liabilities:Ancillary Services Payable 6,575    

      2061 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Federal W / H Tax Payable   0  

      2062 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Social Security Tax Payable   192  

      2063 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Medicare Tax Payable   0  

      2064 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:MO State W / H Tax Payable   (36) 

      2065 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:FFCRA Federal W/H Tax Credit   14  

      2071 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:AFLAC Pre-tax W / H   729  

      2072 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:AFLAC Post-tax W / H   120  

      2073 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Vision Insuance W / H   139  

      2074 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Health Insurance W / H   2  

      2075 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Dental Insurance W / H   (4) 

      2091 Current Liabilities:Computer Lease Liability   3,256  

   Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations: (9,142) (84,052) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 569,495  1,113  

INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

   1531 Fixed Assets:Keystone Remodeling   (19,875) 

   1540 Fixed Assets:Equipment   (18,640) 

Net cash provided by investing activities 0  (38,515) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

   3005 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Operational Reserves 5,435    

   3010 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Transportation (31,183)   

   3030 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Special Needs 42,000    

   3035 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Childrens Programs 42,000    

   3040 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Sheltered Workshop 39,365    

   3050 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Partnership for Hope Match (4,107)   

   3070 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:TCM 118,064    

   3501 Restricted Services Fund Balances:Operational   27,004  

   3555 Restricted Services Fund Balances:Building/Remodeling/Expansion   (14,059) 

   3599 Restricted Services Fund Balances:Other   14,221  



Page - 10 - of 12 

 

   3900 Unrestricted Fund Balances (217,209) (12,945) 

   3999 Clearing Account   (14,221) 

Net cash provided by financing activities (5,635) 0  

Net cash increase for period 563,860  (37,402) 

Cash at beginning of period 695,970  310,359  

Cash at end of period 1,259,830  272,958  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Check Detail - SB 40 Tax Account 
June 2021 

      1025 SB 40 Tax - Bank of Sullivan 

Date Transaction Type Num Name Amount 

06/04/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 5974 Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (6,575.00) 

06/11/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 5975 Childrens Learning Center (14,976.22) 

06/11/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 5976 Lake Area Industries (18,298.91) 

06/11/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 5977 
Our Saviors Lighthouse Child & Family Development 
Center (3,648.54) 

06/17/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 5978 Bankcard Center (464.59) 

06/17/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 5980 Kyle LaBrue (875.00) 

06/17/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 5981 OATS, Inc. (12,216.70) 

06/17/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 5979 Camdenton Apartments dba Lauren's Place (309.00) 

06/21/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 5982 Revelation Construction & Development, LLC (822.00) 

06/21/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 5983 Revelation Construction & Development, LLC (378.00) 

06/21/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 5984 Revelation Construction & Development, LLC (922.00) 

06/21/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 5985 Revelation Construction & Development, LLC (838.00) 

06/21/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 5986 Revelation Construction & Development, LLC (822.00) 

06/21/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 5987 Revelation Construction & Development, LLC (50.00) 

06/21/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 5988 Revelation Construction & Development, LLC (210.00) 

06/21/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 5989 Revelation Construction & Development, LLC (974.00) 

06/24/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 5990 DMH Local Tax Matching Fund (2,800.66) 

06/24/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 5991 Quail's Nest Resorts, Inc. (845.10) 

 
 
 

Check Detail - Services Account 
June 2021 

      1075 Services Account - Bank of Sullivan 

Date Transaction Type Num Name Amount 

06/03/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 2984 Connie L Baker (82.70) 

06/03/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 2985 Direct Service Works (995.00) 

06/03/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 2986 Eddie L Thomas (50.00) 

06/03/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 2987 Elizabeth L Chambers (173.53) 

06/03/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 2988 FP Mailing Solutions (102.00) 

06/03/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 2989 Happy Maids Cleaning Services LLC (100.00) 

06/03/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 2990 Jeanna K Booth (63.63) 

06/03/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 2991 Jennifer Lyon (91.09) 

06/03/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 2992 Linda Simms (219.50) 

06/03/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 2993 Lori Cornwell (61.45) 



Page - 11 - of 12 

 

06/03/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 2994 Mary P Petersen (160.66) 

06/03/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 2995 Micah J Joseph (106.81) 

06/03/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 2996 Patricia L. Strouse (88.59) 

06/03/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 2997 Rachel K Baskerville (50.00) 

06/03/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 2998 Ryan Johnson (50.00) 

06/03/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 2999 Shelah M Sinner (54.36) 

06/03/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3000 Teri Guttman (116.61) 

06/04/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3001 Aflac (780.41) 

06/04/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3002 Camden County PWSD #2 (53.58) 

06/04/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3003 LaClede Electric Cooperative (408.43) 

06/04/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3004 Staples Advantage (146.13) 

06/04/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3005 VERIZON (210.45) 

06/08/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3006 Ameren Missouri (151.29) 

06/08/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3007 AT&T (93.50) 

06/08/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3008 Charter Business / Spectrum (594.87) 

06/08/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3009 Christina R. Mitchell (138.16) 

06/08/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3010 Cynthia Brown (112.13) 

06/08/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3011 Office Business Equipment 0.00  

06/08/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3012 Stephanie  E Enoch (98.67) 

06/08/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3013 SUMNERONE (2,236.00) 

06/11/2021 Expense 153876 Connie L Baker (1,242.84) 

06/11/2021 Expense 153877 Rachel K Baskerville (1,332.00) 

06/11/2021 Expense 153878 Jeanna K Booth (1,581.78) 

06/11/2021 Expense 153879 Cynthia Brown (1,313.61) 

06/11/2021 Expense 153880 Elizabeth L Chambers (1,113.28) 

06/11/2021 Expense 153881 Lori Cornwell (1,525.10) 

06/11/2021 Expense 153882 Stephanie  E Enoch (1,306.52) 

06/11/2021 Expense 153883 Teri Guttman (1,343.20) 

06/11/2021 Expense 153884 Ryan Johnson (1,656.53) 

06/11/2021 Expense 153885 Micah J Joseph (1,527.74) 

06/11/2021 Expense 153886 Jennifer Lyon (1,293.11) 

06/11/2021 Expense 153887 Christina R. Mitchell (1,158.72) 

06/11/2021 Expense 153888 Mary P Petersen (1,252.76) 

06/11/2021 Expense 153889 Shelah M Sinner (1,021.85) 

06/11/2021 Expense 153890 Patricia L. Strouse (1,195.81) 

06/11/2021 Expense 153891 Eddie L Thomas (2,762.71) 

06/11/2021 Expense 153892 Marcie L. Vansyoc (923.88) 

06/11/2021 Expense 153893 Nicole M Whittle (1,694.11) 

06/11/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3014 All American Termite & Pest Control (100.00) 

06/11/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3015 Central Mo Newspapers, Inc (383.45) 

06/11/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3016 Happy Maids Cleaning Services LLC (50.00) 

06/11/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3017 Linda Simms (1,498.77) 

06/11/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3018 Office Business Equipment (189.79) 

06/11/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3019 Staples Advantage (134.99) 

06/11/2021 Expense 06/11/2021 Internal Revenue Service (7,314.04) 

06/17/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3020 Bankcard Center (986.63) 

06/17/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3021 Bryan Cave Leighton Paisner LLP (2,920.00) 

06/17/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3022 City Of Camdenton (69.32) 

06/17/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3023 Ezard's, Inc. (1,342.90) 

06/17/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3024 Lake Area Industries (50.00) 



Page - 12 - of 12 

 

06/24/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3025 All Seasons Services (895.00) 

06/24/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3026 AT&T (128.40) 

06/24/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3027 The Cincinnati Insurance Company (893.00) 

06/25/2021 Expense 153895 Connie L Baker (1,297.02) 

06/25/2021 Expense 153896 Rachel K Baskerville (1,332.00) 

06/25/2021 Expense 153897 Jeanna K Booth (1,581.78) 

06/25/2021 Expense 153898 Cynthia Brown (1,470.89) 

06/25/2021 Expense 153899 Elizabeth L Chambers (1,098.71) 

06/25/2021 Expense 153900 Lori Cornwell (1,525.11) 

06/25/2021 Expense 153901 Stephanie  E Enoch (1,306.52) 

06/25/2021 Expense 153902 Teri Guttman (1,397.23) 

06/25/2021 Expense 153903 Ryan Johnson (1,656.53) 

06/25/2021 Expense 153904 Micah J Joseph (1,513.95) 

06/25/2021 Expense 153905 Jennifer Lyon (1,293.11) 

06/25/2021 Expense 153906 Christina R. Mitchell (1,158.72) 

06/25/2021 Expense 153907 Mary P Petersen (1,241.18) 

06/25/2021 Expense 153908 Shelah M Sinner (1,109.48) 

06/25/2021 Expense 153909 Patricia L. Strouse (1,195.81) 

06/25/2021 Expense 153910 Eddie L Thomas (2,762.72) 

06/25/2021 Expense 153911 Nicole M Whittle (1,694.11) 

06/25/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3028 Delta Dental of Missouri (635.58) 

06/25/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3029 Happy Maids Cleaning Services LLC (100.00) 

06/25/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3030 Linda Simms (1,705.70) 

06/25/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3031 Nicole M Whittle (50.00) 

06/25/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3032 Principal Life Insurance Company (299.52) 

06/25/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3033 Refills Ink (119.98) 

06/25/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3034 Summit Natural Gas of Missouri, Inc. (20.35) 

06/25/2021 Bill Payment (Check) 3035 SUMNERONE (1,696.92) 

06/25/2021 Expense 06/25/2021 Internal Revenue Service (7,122.61) 

06/30/2021 Expense June 2021 Lagers (5,512.57) 

 
 
 



May 2021 
Credit Card Statement 

 





























 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Resolutions 2021-18, 

2021-19, 2021-20, 
& 2021-21 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-18  
 
 

 

APPROVAL OF AMENDED COVID-19 PLAN 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden County voters of the 

Senate Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, 

administrative control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors 

(dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) 

reviews, amends, and appeals its existing Bylaws, policies, plans, handbooks, manuals, and job 

descriptions and creates new Bylaws, policies, plans, handbooks, manuals, and job descriptions as needed 

to remain effective in its Agency administration and remain compliant with regulatory statutes. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 

Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to amend the agency’s 

COVID-19 Plan. 

 

2.  That the Board hereby amends and adopts the agency’s COVID-19 Plan (Attachment “A” hereto) as 

presented. 

 

3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 

majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 

otherwise amended or changed. 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________                  ___________________________ 

Chairperson/Officer/Board Member                                                     Date 

 

 

___________________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary/Vice Chairperson/Treasurer/Board Member                       Date 



Attachment “A” to Resolution 

2021-18 
 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

COVID-19 Plan 

 
(Revised 11/12/2020, 07/08/2021) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 7 

 

Exposure Prevention, Preparedness, and Response 

 

Camden County Developmental Disability Resources (CCDDR) takes the health and safety of our clients and 

employees very seriously.  With the spread of the coronavirus or “COVID-19,” a respiratory disease caused by 

the SARS-CoV-2 virus, CCDDR must remain vigilant in mitigating the outbreak.  CCDDR provides Targeted 

Case Management (TCM) services, which many have deemed “essential” during this declared emergency.  In 

order to be safe and maintain operations, we have developed this COVID-19 Exposure Prevention, 

Preparedness, and Response Plan to be implemented, to the extent feasible and appropriate.  CCDDR has also 

identified a team of employees to monitor the related guidance that the U.S. Center for Disease Control and 

Prevention (CDC), Missouri Division of Developmental Disabilities (DDD), Missouri Department of Health 

and Senior Services (DHSS), Camden County Health Department, and other local, state, or federal agencies 

continue to make available.  This Plan is based on information available at the time of its development and is 

subject to change based on further information provided.  CCDDR may also amend this Plan based on 

operational needs. 

 

Responsibilities of Managers and Supervisors 
 

All managers and supervisors must be familiar with this Plan and be ready to answer questions from employees.  

Managers and supervisors must set a good example by following this Plan at all times.  This involves practicing 

good personal hygiene and safety practices to prevent the spread of the virus.  Managers and supervisors must 

encourage this same behavior from all employees. 

 

Responsibilities of Employees 
 

CCDDR is asking every one of its employees to help with prevention efforts while at work.  In order to 

minimize the spread of COVID-19, everyone must play their part.  As set forth below, CCDDR has instituted 

various housekeeping, social distancing, and other best practices.  All employees must follow these.  In 

addition, employees are expected to report to their managers or supervisors if they test positive for COVID-19, 

are experiencing signs or symptoms of COVID-19, or have been exposed to a person who has tested positive for 

COVID-19 as described below.  If you have a specific question about this Plan or COVID-19, please ask your 

manager or supervisor.  If they cannot answer the question, please contact CCDDR’s Human Resource Officer 

or CCDDR’s Executive Director.  

 

The following control and preventative guidance have been implemented to help prevent and reduce the risk of 

exposure to COVID-19: 

 

• Frequently wash hands with soap and water for at least 20 seconds - when soap and running water are 

unavailable, use an alcohol-based hand rub with at least 60% alcohol. 

• Avoid touching eyes, nose, or mouth with unwashed hands 

• Follow appropriate respiratory etiquette, which includes covering for coughs and sneezes 

• Avoid close contact with people who are sick 

• Maintain social distancing (at least 6 feet apart from other people) 

• Wear a facemask/cloth face covering if needing to be around other people 

• The use of nitrile, latex, vinyl, or other similar gloves is encouraged if practical and possible  

 

In addition, employees must familiarize themselves with the symptoms of COVID-19, which include the 

following:  

 

• Fever or chills 



Page 3 of 7 

 

• Cough 

• Shortness of breath or difficulty breathing 

• Fatigue 

• Muscle or body aches 

• Headache 

• New loss of taste or smell 

• Sore throat 

• Congestion or runny nose 

• Nausea or vomiting 

• Diarrhea  

 

If employees develop any of these symptoms, they are to call their supervisor and DO NOT GO INTO ANY 

CCDDR OFFICE OR PHYSICALLY CONTACT ANYONE AS RELATED TO THEIR CCDDR DUTIES.  

We also recommend employees contact their healthcare providers right away.  Likewise, if employees come 

into close contact with someone showing these symptoms, call your supervisor, and we recommend you call 

your healthcare provider right away. 

Fully Vaccinated Employees 

Fully vaccinated employees are no longer required to wear a facemask/cloth face covering or maintain social 

distance (at least six (6) feet between the employee and other individuals) while working in CCDDR offices 

and at the Keystone facility, except as otherwise may be required by this Plan.  When conducting CCDDR 

business outside of the CCDDR offices and Keystone facility, employees will follow the guidance provided 

by the CDC, DDD, DHSS, and/or federal, state, local, tribal, or territorial laws, rules, and regulations, 

including local business and workplace guidance. In general, employees are considered fully vaccinated:   

• 2 weeks after their second dose in a 2-dose series, such as the Pfizer or Moderna vaccines, or 

• 2 weeks after a single-dose vaccine, such as Johnson & Johnson’s Janssen vaccine 

Fully vaccinated employees must provide proof of vaccination to CCDDR’s Human Resource Officer; 

otherwise, an employee will be considered not fully vaccinated (see below). 

Not Fully Vaccinated Employees 

If an employee does not meet the conditions identified in the Fully Vaccinated Employees section above, the 

employee is not fully vaccinated. Until an employee is fully vaccinated, the employee needs to keep taking 

all precautions as articulated in this Plan, including maintaining social distance (at least six (6) feet) when 

possible and wearing a facemask/cloth face covering, until fully vaccinated. Please note that according to CDC 

Guidance, an employee who has a condition or is taking medications that weaken the immune system should 

talk to the employee’s healthcare provider to discuss the employee’s activities, as those employees may need to 

keep taking all precautions to prevent COVID-19. 

Protective Measures & Precautions 
 

CCDDR has instituted the following protective measures and precautions at its offices and applicable portions 

of buildings, and in the performance of employee job functions and work-related activities. 

 

1. Support Coordination services shall be conducted in accordance with guidance and/or directives issued 

by the DDD. 



Page 4 of 7 

 

2. Employees, Board members, and visitors are required to self-monitor their personal health daily for 

COVID-19 symptoms.  Employees shall not report to work, or shall promptly leave work, if they feel 

they are experiencing COVID-19 symptoms. 

3. Management will monitor employees, Board members, and on-site visitors who enter any CCDDR 

building or CCDDR event/meeting beyond the lobby area or event/meeting entry area for symptoms of 

COVID-19.  Any employee, contractor, Board member, or visitor in any CCDDR office or building 

showing any symptom of COVID-19 will be asked to leave. Employees sent home for having any 

symptom of COVID-19 should contact CCDDR’s Human Resource Officer or Executive Director for 

any questions regarding available leave and steps that must be taken before returning to work.  

4. CCDDR offices and applicable portions of buildings shall remain open to the public, but access will be 

limited to lobbies and/or other designated areas.  CCDDR may close its offices to the public or restrict 

employee entry should circumstances warrant.  The general rule of thumb for restricting access to 

offices and buildings, excluding portions of buildings leased to third parties, shall be based on the testing 

positivity rate associated with COVID-19 testing in Camden County and other pertinent factors.  If data 

is insufficient or unavailable, CCDDR will make decisions based on best practices, available industry 

standards/recommendations, and management’s best judgement.  Additional employee entry restrictions 

will be evaluated based on the circumstances, including restricting employee entry to designated 

personnel only. 

5. CCDDR’s cleaning service will be cleaning and disinfecting the office lobbies and bathroom areas 

(accessible by the public) on a regular basis.  Additional cleaning and disinfecting may be required 

periodically and when warranted as well.  The cleaning service will be required to utilize appropriate 

PPE and to disinfect all appropriate surfaces (doorknobs, counter tops, etc.).  Designated personnel will 

disinfect kitchen, break, and common use areas on a regular basis.   

6. All communications with visitors to the offices shall be done through the communication port through 

the security glass or in the lobby areas.  In the event that there is no one in the offices to receive phone 

calls, office phones will be forwarded to designated personnel, and the office door lock will be initiated 

remotely if no one is working at the front desks. Designated personnel will take messages and notify the 

appropriate staff member for whom the call was intended.  Employees should use their cell phone's 

feature and mechanism to conceal their cell phone numbers on the receiver's end when returning calls. 

7. Contractors may be allowed to enter restricted areas, which are considered to be beyond the lobby areas 

and point of entry to employee designated work areas, offices, and workstations, only if necessary and 

required to perform their duties. Contractors entering restricted areas will be required to wear 

facemasks/cloth coverings and gloves.  Areas where the contractors worked shall be cleaned and 

disinfected after departure by CCDDR’s cleaning service or designated personnel.  Please contact the 

Executive Director if there is any uncertainty about contractors entering restricted areas.   

8. Employee and Board meetings may be held by telephone or video conferencing, if possible.  If 

employee and Board meetings are conducted in-person, attendance will be collected verbally or visually, 

if possible.  Employees and Board members should avoid physical contact with others and should direct 

others to maintain personal space to at least six (6) feet, where possible.  During any in-person Board 

meeting, all attendees will be encouraged to wear facemasks/cloth face coverings and maintain social 

distance.  Employees who are not fully vaccinated must wear facemasks/cloth coverings and maintain 

social distance (personal space at least (6) feet) while at in-person employee and Board meetings. 

9. Facemasks/cloth face coverings will be encouraged at in-person meetings where six (6) foot distancing 

cannot be consistently maintained or other circumstances exist making facemask/cloth face covering use 

essential.  Employees who are not fully vaccinated must wear facemasks/cloth coverings while attending 

in-person meetings. 

10. Employees will be encouraged to stagger breaks and lunches, if practicable, to reduce the size of any 

group at any one time.   

11. Employees should limit the use of coworkers’ equipment or other tools.  To the extent equipment or 

other tools must be shared, employees should clean and disinfect equipment or other tools before and 



Page 5 of 7 

 

after use.  When cleaning and disinfecting equipment and other tools, consult manufacturing 

recommendations for proper cleaning techniques and restrictions. 

12. All employees will be encouraged to use facemasks/cloth face coverings in high traffic areas, 

public/common areas (including restrooms), hallways, moving about the office, when with clients, and 

wherever it is not possible to maintain six (6) feet of social distance. Employees who are not fully 

vaccinated must wear facemasks/cloth coverings in high traffic areas, public/common areas (including 

restrooms), hallways, moving about the office, when with clients, and wherever it is not possible to 

maintain six (6) feet of social distance.  Facemasks/cloth face coverings may be further required should 

circumstances warrant.   

13. All employees may be required to wear facemasks/cloth coverings if attending work-related events, 

meetings, or activities not sponsored by CCDDR.  Employees who are not fully vaccinated must wear 

facemasks/cloth coverings if attending work-related events, meetings, or activities not sponsored by 

CCDDR.  CCDDR may restrict/prohibit employees from attending these work-related events, meetings, 

or activities should circumstances warrant.   

14. Employees may work remotely, when possible, practical, and approved by their supervisor. DO NOT 

BRING CHILDREN INTO THE WORKPLACE.  If possible, employees should use the employee-only 

entrance when entering and exiting the Camdenton office.  CCDDR may implement staggered shifts for 

employee entry into and use of its offices and applicable portions of buildings if circumstances warrant.  

15. Employees are encouraged to minimize ride sharing while performing CCDDR-related duties.  While in 

vehicles, employees should ensure adequate ventilation and may be required to wear a facemask/cloth 

face covering when travelling with others. 

16. Employees should sanitize their work areas upon arrival, throughout the workday, and upon departure. 

17. Employees should sanitize their hands before starting and after completing their workday.  Employees 

should also sanitize their hands periodically throughout the workday, whenever warranted and 

appropriate. 

18. In-person contact with clients not established or defined in DDD guidance or directives for conducting 

Support Coordination duties (including, but not limited to, transporting clients) must be approved by the 

TCM Supervisor or Executive Director.  Approval will be reserved to EMERGENCY 

CIRCUMSTANCES ONLY.  If clients indicate they may be sick, please have them contact the 

appropriate health care professional(s), provider(s), caregiver(s), or EMS.  Employees may assist them 

remotely in contacting the appropriate providers/caregivers or EMS. 

 

Exposure Situations 
 

Employee Exhibits COVID-19 Symptoms 

 

If an employee exhibits COVID-19 symptoms, the employee must leave the workplace immediately if at work 

when the employee first experiences symptoms or stay at home if the employee first experiences symptoms 

outside of the workplace.  

 

An employee experiencing COVID-19 symptoms may work remotely (if possible) and may return to work 

when: 

• At least 10 days have passed since the onset of symptoms; 

• At least 24 hours have passed with no fever without the use of fever-reducing medication; and 

• Other symptoms of COVID-19 are improving (the loss of taste and smell may persist for weeks or 

months after recovery and need not delay the end of isolation) 

 

Employees may be required to be tested and/or provide CCDDR with appropriate documentation from their 

medical provider before returning to the office.  If an employee receives a negative COVID-19 diagnostic test 



Page 6 of 7 

 

and wishes to return to work before 10 days have passed since the onset of symptoms, the employee must 

provide CCDDR with appropriate documentation regarding negative test results. 

 

Employee Tests Positive for COVID-19  

 

An employee who tests positive for COVID-19 will be directed to stay at home and work remotely, if possible.  

Employees who test positive and are directed to care for themselves at home may return to work when: 

   

• At least 10 days have passed since the employee’s positive test; 

• At least 24 hours have passed since last fever without the use of fever-reducing medications; and 

• CCDDR is provided appropriate documentation from the medical provider confirming it has been at 

least 10 days since the employee’s positive test 

 

If an employee has tested positive, CCDDR will conduct an investigation to identify co-workers and work-

related third parties who may have been in close contact with the confirmed-positive employee in the prior two 

(2) days and may direct those employees who were in close contact with the confirmed-positive employee to 

work remotely for 14 days from the last date of close contact with that employee and monitor their symptoms.  

If applicable, CCDDR will also notify any contractors, vendors/suppliers, visitors, or clients/client families who 

may have been in close contact with the confirmed-positive employee.  

 

The Centers for Disease Prevention and Control (“CDC”) have stated that some individuals who test positive 

for COVID-19 may remain infectious longer than 10 days. Specifically, the CDC has advised that those who 

test positive for COVID-19 and: (1) who experience more severe illness and symptoms; or (2) who are severely 

immunocompromised, may be contagious for longer than those who tested positive for COVID-19 but 

experience mild symptoms and/or who are not immunocompromised.  

Employees who test positive for COVID-19 and who: (1) experience severe COVID-19 symptoms; or (2) have 

a medical condition that renders them severely immunocompromised, should contact CCDDR’s Human 

Resource Officer or Executive Director to discuss safely returning to work and potential accommodations that 

may be available to them.   

 

Employees who test positive and have been hospitalized may return to work when directed to do so by their 

medical care provider.  CCDDR must be provided the appropriate documentation from the medical care 

provider before returning to work. 

 

Potential Exposure:  Employee Has Close Contact with an Individual Who Tested Positive for COVID-19 

 

Any employee who learns that he or she may have come into close contact with an individual who has tested 

positive for COVID-19 (a “Potential Exposure”) must alert a manager or supervisor.  Employees who have a 

Potential Exposure (co-worker or otherwise) will be directed to work remotely, if possible. Employees who 

have a Potential Exposure are directed to monitor their symptoms at home and may return to work when: 

 

• If the employee does not undergo a diagnostic test, then: 

o At least 10 days have passed since the Potential Exposure; and 

o The employee has not developed any symptoms consistent with COVID-19. 

  

• If an employee does undergo a diagnostic test, then: 

o The employee takes the diagnostic test no sooner than 5 days after the Potential Exposure; 

o The employee receives a negative test result; 

o At least 7 days have passed since the employee’s Potential Exposure; and 



Page 7 of 7 

 

o The employee has not developed any symptoms consistent with COVID-19. 

 

Employees with a Potential Exposure must continue to monitor their symptoms for 14 days after the Potential 

Exposure, regardless of whether or not the employee received a negative test result. If an employee develops 

symptoms and/or tests positive after a Potential Exposure, then the isolation procedures applicable to those with 

symptoms and/or who test positive will apply to that employee.  An employee must immediately report any 

symptoms her or she experiences after a Potential Exposure to Human Resources. Additionally, employees with 

a Potential Exposure must continue to adhere to social distancing and mask protocols for 14 days after the 

Potential Exposure. 

 

Close contact is defined by the CDC as someone who was within 6 feet of an infected person for a cumulative 

total of 15 minutes or more in a 24-hour period starting from 2 days before illness onset (or, for asymptomatic 

people, 2 days prior to the positive specimen collection) until the time the infected person meets the criteria for 

discontinuing home isolation.  The CDC provides the following examples of “close contacts”: 

• You provided care at home to someone who is sick with COVID-19; 

• You had direct physical contact with someone who is sick with COVID-19 (hugged or kissed them); 

• You shared eating or drinking utensils with someone who is sick with COVID-19; or 

• Someone who is sick with COVID-19 sneezed, coughed, or somehow got respiratory droplets on you. 

Employees may refer to applicable CCDDR FMLA, Paid-Time-Off, or other Leave of Absence Policies if 

unable to work remotely. 

 

Confidentiality/Privacy 
 

Except for circumstances in which CCDDR is legally required to report workplace occurrences of 

communicable disease, the confidentiality of all medical conditions will be maintained in accordance with 

applicable law and to the extent practical under the circumstances.  When it is required, the number of persons 

who will be informed an unnamed employee has tested positive will be kept to the minimum needed to comply 

with reporting requirements and to limit the potential for transmission to others.  CCDDR reserves the right to 

inform other employees an unnamed co-worker has been diagnosed with COVID-19 if the other employees 

might have been exposed to the disease so the employees may take measures to protect their own health. 

CCDDR also reserves the right to inform contractors, vendors/suppliers, visitors, or clients/client families an 

unnamed employee has been diagnosed with COVID-19 if they might have been exposed to the disease so those 

individuals may take measures to protect their own health. 

 

This COVID-19 Plan shall remain in full effect until rescinded or revised by the CCDDR Board of Directors. 

However, should the CDC or any other local, state, or federal regulatory entity issue revised guidance or 

recommendations regarding COVID-19, the Executive Director may revise this Plan, and any such revisions 

will take immediate effect until the Board is able to take action to formally modify and adopt any changes in 

this Plan at its next regularly scheduled Board meeting. 

 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-19  
 
 

 

APPROVAL OF AMENDED POLICY #11 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden County voters of the 

Senate Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, 

administrative control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors 

(dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) 

reviews, amends, and appeals its existing Bylaws, policies, plans, handbooks, manuals, and job 

descriptions and creates new Bylaws, policies, plans, handbooks, manuals, and job descriptions as needed 

to remain effective in its Agency administration and remain compliant with regulatory statutes. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 

Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to amend Policy #11, 

Agency Governance Review. 

 

2.  That the Board hereby amends and adopts Policy #11 (Attachment “A” hereto) as presented. 

 

3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 

majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 

otherwise amended or changed. 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________                  ___________________________ 

Chairperson/Officer/Board Member                                                     Date 

 

 

___________________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary/Vice Chairperson/Treasurer/Board Member                       Date 



Attachment “A” to Resolution 

2021-19 
 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 

 
PURPOSE: 

 

Camden County Developmental Disability Resources (CCDDR) shall have a policy to 

periodically review its procedures, policies, plans, manuals, job descriptions, Bylaws, and 

program guidelines to ensure compliance with Federal, State, and local law and to ensure current 

best practices are being recognized by the agency. 

 

POLICY: 

 

CCDDR’s Administrative Team shall review procedures, policies, plans, manuals, handbooks, 

job descriptions, and program guidelines on an annual basis and review issues arising in the 

agency’s operations periodically as needed.  The core members of the Administrative Team shall 

be the Executive Director, Targeted Case Management Supervisors, Compliance Manager, and 

Accounting Manager.  The Board Chairperson, other Board members, and other staff may also 

be included in meetings, discussions, and strategies.   

 

New policies, plans, manuals, handbooks, job descriptions, and program guidelines must be 

discussed by and approved through Resolution of CCDDR’s Board of Directors at a Board 

meeting.  Revisions to policies, plans, manuals, handbooks, and the Executive Director’s job 

description must also be discussed by and approved through Resolution of CCDDR’s Board of 

Directors at a Board meeting; however, new or revisions to agency procedures; revisions to all 

other previously Board-approved job descriptions, and revisions to previously Board-approved 

program guidelines can be approved and enacted by the Executive Director as deemed necessary 

so long as those revisions do not conflict or violate any Bylaws provision, policy, plan, manual, 

handbook, regulation, or law.  The CCDDR Board of Directors may rescind or revise any 

procedure, policy, plan, manual, handbook, job description, or program guideline through 

discussion and approval of a Resolution at a Board meeting. 

 

CCDDR’s Board of Directors shall appoint Board members to the Agency Governance 

Committee each calendar year.  This Committee shall be primarily charged with reviewing the 

agency Bylaws with the intent of ensuring the Bylaws remain in compliance with Federal, State, 

and local law and current best practices are being recognized.  The Agency Governance 

Committee may also review, discuss, and make recommendations for changes to other Board 

governance materials. 

 

Policy Number:  

11 

Effective:  September 18, 2017 

Revised: August 13, 2020, July 8, 2021 

 

Subject: Agency Governance Review 

 



Page 2 of 2 
 

The Executive Director shall review the Bylaws on an ongoing basis and determine if changes 

are necessary.  Any Board member or the Executive Director may request a meeting of the 

Committee in the event any Board member or the Executive Director feels changes are needed.  

The Agency Governance Committee will then review the recommended changes and determine 

if the revisions are necessary.  If deemed necessary by the Committee, the Bylaws revisions will 

be presented at a regularly scheduled Board meeting for review and discussion (aka “First 

Reading”).  Any changes to the Bylaws may then be approved through a Resolution during the 

next or a separate regularly scheduled Board meeting (aka “Second Reading”).            

 

REFERENCES: 

 

• CARF Standards Manual 

• Robert’s Rules of Order 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-20  
 
 

 

APPROVAL OF AMENDED POLICY #14 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden County voters of the 

Senate Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, 

administrative control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors 

(dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) 

reviews, amends, and appeals its existing Bylaws, policies, plans, handbooks, manuals, and job 

descriptions and creates new Bylaws, policies, plans, handbooks, manuals, and job descriptions as needed 

to remain effective in its Agency administration and remain compliant with regulatory statutes. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 

Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to amend Policy #14, Board 

Governance. 

 

2.  That the Board hereby amends and adopts Policy #14 (Attachment “A” hereto) as presented. 

 

3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 

majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 

otherwise amended or changed. 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________                  ___________________________ 

Chairperson/Officer/Board Member                                                     Date 

 

 

___________________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary/Vice Chairperson/Treasurer/Board Member                       Date 



Attachment “A” to Resolution 

2021-20 
 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 7 

 

 
PURPOSE: 

 

Camden County Developmental Disability Resources (CCDDR) shall have sound governance 

policies in order for the Board of Directors to effectively manage the operations of the Board and 

in order for the agency to accomplish its stated mission.  

 

POLICY: 

 

Board members shall have the following basic legal duties:  

 

• A duty of care  

• A duty of loyalty  

• A duty of obedience  

 

This policy complements, but does not replace, the Board’s current operating Bylaws. 

 

CCDDR is established as a political subdivision under the laws of Missouri, statute 205.968-

205.972.  The CCDDR Board of Directors is established as the authority to operate CCDDR in 

accordance with the above statute, Bylaws, and Board policies. 

 

CCDDR business will be conducted in accordance with the laws of the state of Missouri, Bylaws 

of the agency, Board policies, and generally accepted business practices that will accomplish the 

CCDDR mission. 

 

I. Authority of Board of Directors 

 

Each member of the CCDDR Board is legally and morally responsible for all activities of 

CCDDR.  All members of the Board share in a joint and collective authority which exists and 

can only be exercised when the group is in session. 

 

II. Board Member Commitment 

 

Serving as a Board member of CCDDR involves a very special commitment.  To meet that 

commitment, Board members are expected to: 

 

• Ensure adherence to CCDDR’s mission and ethics statements 

• Attend and actively participate in all of the Board’s meetings 

• When absent from a meeting, review minutes and results of the missed meeting 

Policy Number:  

14 

Effective:  May 1, 2008 

Revised: April 19, 2010 

October 16, 2017, January 22, 2018,  

February 25, 2019, July 8, 2021 

 

Subject: Board Governance 

 



Page 2 of 7 

 

• Do their homework to be prepared to participate fully in Board and committee meetings 

• Act only with the full Board, not individually unless authorized to do so by the full Board 

• Speak for the full Board only when the full Board sanctions he/she in doing so 

 

 

III. Board Delegation of Policy Interpretation to Staff and Public 

 

The Board delegates to the Executive Director responsibility for policy interpretation to the 

staff and public and for rule making, issuance of procedural directives, and guides not 

specifically covered or detailed in the Board policies.  Such interpretations, rules, and 

directives have the force of Board regulations unless and until superseded by the Board 

action. 

 

IV. Board Member Rights 

 

CCDDR Board members are granted certain specific rights.  All Board members have the 

right to: 

 

• Receive notice of Board meetings and the agenda 

• Attend and participate in Board meetings 

• Examine CCDDR’s books, records, meeting minutes, financial statements, and contracts 

• Place items on the Board meeting agenda at the appropriate time 

 

V. Duty of Board Members not to Compete 

 

A Board member may not use his/her position on the CCDDR Board to prevent CCDDR 

from competing with the Board business.  It is expected that Board members, even after they 

complete Board service, will not use trade secrets, client lists, or other confidential 

information acquired by virtue of being a member of the Board. 

 

VI. Legal Obligations of Board Members 

 

CCDDR Board members are both responsible and liable for CCDDR.  The CCDDR Board 

and the law require every Board member to follow the rule of the reasonably prudent person 

and the principle of good faith. 

 

The rule of the reasonably prudent person means that the Board will not: 

 

• Mismanage CCDDR in a manner deviating from fundamental management principles, 

such as planning carefully for the future of CCDDR or its clients, regularly reviewing the 

financial status of CCDDR, and monitoring compliance with Board policies 

• Fail to govern by utilizing all control systems available to CCDDR 

• Be involved in self-promotion that provides personal gain to Board members 

 



Page 3 of 7 

 

The principle of good faith means that Board members will: 

 

• Attend all Board and committee meetings to be a part of Board actions 

• Read and understand CCDDR’s policies and Bylaws 

• Pay attention to organizational affairs and keep informed about organization activities 

• Ensure that CCDDR is in compliance with legal requirements 

• Avoid self-promotion 

• Base decisions on and act in the best interest of the agency and the individuals served by 

the agency 

• Maintain boundaries with all persons served, their families, and stakeholders 

 

CCDDR Board members will not: 

 

• Be critical, in or outside of the Board meeting, of other Board members or their opinions 

• Use CCDDR or any part of CCDDR for any personal advantage or the personal 

advantage of friends or relatives 

• Discuss confidential proceedings or closed session proceedings of the Board outside the 

Board meeting 

• Promise prior to a meeting how they will vote on any issue in the meeting 

• Interfere with duties of the Executive Director and staff or undermine the Executive 

Director’s authority 

• Authorize any action or transaction on behalf of the Board of Directors in any 

procurement of services or execution of any legal document, legal agreement, contractual 

agreement, use of property, or other similar action or transaction without being 

authorized to do so by the Board of Directors 

• Sign as a witness on any legal documents pertaining to persons served, their families, or 

stakeholders, except if acting within the capacity of the legally designated representative, 

primary relative, and/or legal guardian for a specific individual 

 

VII. Board Member Composition 

 

The composition of the Board of Directors shall adhere to state statutes in terms of the 

following:  

 

1. At least two members of the Board shall be related within the third degree to a person 

with a developmental disability.  

2. At least seven Board members must be residents of Camden County Missouri  

3. The total number of Board members shall be nine.  

4. All Board members shall be appointed by the Camden County Commission to serve three 

year terms. 

 

VIII. Board Member Selection Process 

 

When there is a vacancy within the Board, the Board shall determine if there is a need to 

form a Nominating Committee or charge the Executive Director to conduct a search for 

potential Board members.  The Nominating Committee or Executive Director shall be 



Page 4 of 7 

 

responsible for recommending no more than three candidates to fill the vacancy, which will 

be submitted to the full Board for review and discussion. Upon finalizing review and 

discussion by the full Board, the candidates’ names shall be submitted for consideration to 

the Camden County Commission for appointment to the Board.  

 

To be most effective in ensuring the right candidates are considered, the selection criteria 

shall consider the composition of the current Board, the current Board members qualities, 

and the needs of CCDDR as an organization. In addition to the consideration of the statutory 

requirements, some basic qualities the Nominating Committee or Executive Director may 

consider in evaluating potential Board members include the candidates’: 

 

• Overall interest and enthusiasm in serving on the Board and in improving the lives of 

Camden County citizens with developmental disabilities  

• Level of integrity  

• Prior education/work experience within the field of developmental disabilities 

• Teamwork skills  

• Geographic area of residence within the county 

• Ability to think toward the future  

• Time availability 

• Ability to attend Board meetings 

 

The nominating committee shall analyze these qualities along with those of the current Board 

and consider how the prospective members and current members will work together. The 

committee may also consider how the prospective members will influence the existing 

CCDDR Board dynamics. 

 

The ongoing evaluation process of the CCDDR Board and its processes, as well as the annual 

Board member process, may also influence the selection criteria.  

 

When suitable candidates have been identified, the Nominating Committee or Executive 

Director shall initiate discussions with them to gauge their interest and provide answers to 

any questions or concerns. If requested by candidates, the Nominating Committee or 

Executive Director shall provide candidates with information about the Board and the 

organization, including: the organization’s annual report, promotional brochures, a summary 

of the organization’s services; a summary of the Board’s current strategic plan; etc.  

 

The list of candidates shall then be presented to the full CCDDR Board, who shall approve 

the list of candidates and identify the candidates the Board would like to have appointed.  

The Board may identify a top candidate or list the candidates in preferential order.  Once the 

list of candidates is approved by the Board, the list of candidates shall be provided to the 

Camden County Commission, who may choose a candidate from the list to fill the current 

vacancy and who shall appoint a replacement to the CCDDR Board. 

 

 

  

 

http://non-profit-governance.suite101.com/article.cfm/board_evaluation


Page 5 of 7 

 

IX. New Board Member Orientation 

 

Once the candidate has been appointed to the Board by the Camden County Commission, the 

Board Chairperson and Executive Director will welcome the new member to the Board and 

ensure that the new member receives proper orientation to his/her new roles. Information 

shall be provided to each new Board member at the start of his or her service. This 

information will assist the new Board member with becoming familiar with CCDDR and its 

operations, the functions of the CCDDR Board, and the expectations of each Board member. 

Throughout the term, the information serves as a useful reference tool for CCDDR Board 

members. 

 

To assure its effectiveness, the information shall be reviewed with all new CCDDR Board 

members. The information shall be kept up to date as CCDDR policies change or are 

introduced. The information shall include materials, reference links, and/or access to the 

following: 

 

• CCDDR’s current mission statement  

• A brief history of CCDDR  

• A description of CCDDR’s structure and operations, including meeting dates and job 

descriptions  

• A copy of the CCDDR Bylaws  

• A Board Member Job Description 

• All operational policies of CCDDR  

• CCDDR’s current strategic plan  

• Financial information, including the current CCDDR budget, most-recent audit, 

investments, insurance and funding information  

• A list of common acronyms used within field 

• A description of the Board’s committees and their terms of reference  

• The names and contact information of each CCDDR Board member 

 

All new Board members shall review/sign the following forms upon their initial appointment 

and annually thereafter: 

 

• HIPAA Confidentiality Agreement 

• Code Of Ethical Conduct Agreement 

• Code of Ethics Statement 

• Conflict of Interest Statement 

• Social Media Policy Acknowledgement 

• Board Member Job Description 

• Corporate Compliance Acknowledgement 

• Ethical Conduct and Values Statement 

• Gift Disclosure Form 

• Internet Bank and Financial Access Agreement 

• Principles of Teamwork Acknowledgement 

• Any other agreements, acknowledgements, or statements adopted or enacted hereafter 

http://non-profit-governance.suite101.com/article.cfm/job_descriptions_for_board_members


Page 6 of 7 

 

 

Staff members of CCDDR may lead tours of the CCDDR facility as well as the facilities of 

contracted agencies for new Board members. This will help new Board members to become 

familiarized with the programs and services both funded and provided by the Board.  

 

In addition, the CCDDR Board Chairperson or a Board committee chairperson may also 

organize a committee orientation presentation. This can include describing each CCDDR 

committee and its purpose, reviewing each committee’s work plans or assignments, and 

becoming familiar with each committee’s terms of reference. 

 

At the completion of the CCDDR Board orientation process, new Board members may be 

encouraged to provide feedback and recommendations on the orientation process. This will 

help strengthen the process for the future. The CCDDR Board Chairperson may also 

periodically involve the new Board member in one-on-one reviews of the members’ progress 

following the orientation. 

 

X. Board Education & Development 

 

Periodically, CCDDR may provide certain Board development activities for all current Board 

members to enable them to more effectively accomplish their responsibilities as Board 

members. Such ongoing Board development activities provide Board members with the 

appropriate knowledge required to be effective decision makers. Board development 

activities can also help motivate the Board members in their positions. CCDDR may provide 

Board training & education activities during regular Board meetings, special meetings, or 

retreats. These orientation sessions can be in the form of presentations, group discussions, or 

information-sharing meetings. The Board Chairperson can lead a discussion with the new 

Board members of the organization’s values and services. During the discussion, the 

Chairperson can refer to the Board’s work plan and how it relates to the organization’s 

strategies. The content and need for such Board training and education activities shall be 

determined on an as-needed basis by the Board. 

 

XI. Annual Board Self Assessments  

 

The CCDDR Board of Directors shall complete annual self assessments of the Board as a 

whole, as well as self assessments of their individual performance as CCDDR Board 

members. The self assessments shall be used to provide input as to needed Board 

development activities and orientation activities. 

 

XII. Implementation of Board Governance Materials 

 

The Executive Director shall develop proposed policies, manuals, handbooks, plans, job 

descriptions, or other Board governance materials at the request of the Board and may also 

propose new or revisions to policies, manuals, handbooks, plans, job descriptions, or other 

Board governance materials if the Executive Director feels they are necessary. New policies, 

plans, manuals, handbooks, job descriptions, and program guidelines must be discussed by 

and approved through Resolution of CCDDR’s Board of Directors at a Board meeting.  



Page 7 of 7 

 

Revisions to policies, plans, manuals, handbooks, and the Executive Director’s job 

description must also be discussed by and approved through Resolution of CCDDR’s Board 

of Directors at a Board meeting; however, new or revisions to agency procedures; revisions 

to all other previously Board-approved job descriptions, and revisions to previously Board-

approved program guidelines can be approved and enacted by the Executive Director as 

deemed necessary so long as those revisions do not conflict or violate any Bylaws provision, 

policy, plan, manual, regulation, or law.  The CCDDR Board of Directors may rescind or 

revise any procedure, policy, plan, manual, job description, or program guideline through 

discussion and approval of a Resolution at a Board meeting.  

 

On an annual basis, the Executive Director and Administrative Team shall review all 

policies, manuals, handbooks, plans, job descriptions, or other Board governance materials 

and may make recommendations for modifications as needed.  The Executive Director shall 

enact agency procedures as appropriate and within the guidelines of policies, manuals, 

handbooks, plans, job descriptions, Bylaws, or other Board governance materials. 

  

XIII. Exit Process  

 

Board members may resign their position with the Board at any time by submitting a Letter 

of Resignation to the CCDDR Board Chairperson. The Letter of Resignation shall provide 

the circumstances with regard to the Board member’s resignation and the effective date of the 

resignation. Board members may be reappointed for additional three-year terms by the 

Camden County Commission, should the Commission approve the reappointment.  If an 

appointment or re-appointment has not been confirmed by the Camden County Commission 

on the term expiration date of any Board member position, the Board member position shall 

be considered vacant until an appointment or re-appointment is made.  If a vacancy or 

vacancies exist, a quorum of the Board shall then be considered a majority of the confirmed 

appointed positions remaining. 

 

 

REFERENCES: 

 

• Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo 

• CARF Standards Manual, Section 1J 

• CCDDR Bylaws 

 

 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-21  
 
 

 

APPROVAL OF AMENDED POLICY #35 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden County voters of the 

Senate Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, 

administrative control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors 

(dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) 

reviews, amends, and appeals its existing Bylaws, policies, plans, handbooks, manuals, and job 

descriptions and creates new Bylaws, policies, plans, handbooks, manuals, and job descriptions as needed 

to remain effective in its Agency administration and remain compliant with regulatory statutes. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 

Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to amend Policy #35, 

CCDDR Social Media Policy. 

 

2.  That the Board hereby amends and adopts Policy #35 (Attachment “A” hereto) as presented. 

 

3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 

majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 

otherwise amended or changed. 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________                  ___________________________ 

Chairperson/Officer/Board Member                                                     Date 

 

 

___________________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary/Vice Chairperson/Treasurer/Board Member                       Date 



Attachment “A” to Resolution 

2021-21 
 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 3 
 

  
 
 
 

PURPOSE: 
 

Camden County Developmental Disability Resources (CCDDR) shall have a policy to 

implement sound social media management practices that allow for information distribution, 

information gathering, communications, program/service/support promotion, and all related 

activities. All social media management practices of the Board shall comply with applicable 

state and federal laws. 

 

POLICY: 
 
In the rapidly expanding world of electronic communication, “social media” can mean many 

things.  As used in this policy, “social media” includes all means of communicating or posting 

information or content of any sort on the Internet, whether through Facebook, Twitter, You Tube, 

or similar site, and it includes employees’ or someone else’s web log or blog, journal or diary, 

personal web site, social networking or affinity web site, web bulletin board or a chat room, as well 

as any other form of electronic communication. 

CCDDR understands social media can be a fun and rewarding way to share an employee’s life and 

opinions with family, friends, and co-workers.  However, use of social media also presents certain 

risks and carries with it certain responsibilities.  To assist in making responsible decisions about 

use of social media, CCDDR has established these rules and guidelines for appropriate use of 

social media. 

Rules for Work-Related Use of Social Medica 

If employees are authorized to engage in social media use on behalf of CCDDR, the employees 

must follow all of the same guidelines set out below for personal use of social media.  Employees 

must also comply with any additional instructions they may receive regarding such work-related 

use.   

Remember, when employees engage in social media use on behalf of CCDDR as part of their jobs, 

they are speaking for CCDDR. Therefore, all such communication must be solely for the benefit of 

CCDDR, and the content of such communication is subject to approval at all times.  

 

Policy Number: 

35 

Effective:  September 15, 2014 

Revised:  October 16, 2017, July 8, 2021 

 

Subject: Social Media Policy 

 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Guidelines for the Personal Use of Social Media 

Ultimately, employees are solely responsible for what they post online in their personal use of 

social media.  Before creating online content, consider some of the risks and rewards that are 

involved.  Keep in mind any conduct adversely affecting employees’ job performance, the 

performance of fellow employees, or otherwise adversely affects the Board of Directors, clients, 

vendors, people who work on behalf of CCDDR, or CCDDR’s legitimate business interests may 

result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 

Know and Follow these Guidelines 

Carefully read these guidelines as well as other CCDDR policies, and ensure postings are 

consistent with these policies.  Inappropriate postings that may include discriminatory remarks, 

harassment, and threats of violence or similar inappropriate or unlawful conduct will not be 

tolerated and may subject employees to disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 

Be Respectful 

Always be fair and courteous to fellow employees, clients, vendors, other stakeholders, or people 

who work on behalf of CCDDR.  Also, keep in mind employees are more likely to resolve work-

related complaints by speaking directly with co-workers or using CCDDR’s internal complaint 

procedures rather than by posting complaints to a social media outlet.  Nevertheless, if employees 

decide to post complaints or criticism, avoid using statements, photographs, video, or audio that 

reasonably could be viewed as malicious, obscene, threatening, or intimidating; that disparage our 

clients, employees, other stakeholders, or vendors; or that might constitute harassment or bullying.  

Examples of such conduct might include offensive posts meant to intentionally harm someone’s 

reputation or posts that could contribute to a hostile work environment on the basis of race, sex, 

national origin, religion, age, disability, sexual orientation, or any other status protected by law or 

CCDDR policy. 

Be Honest and Accurate 

Employees are to always be honest and accurate when posting information or news, and if 

employees make a mistake, employees need to correct it quickly.  Be open about any previous 

posts that have been altered.  Remember the Internet archives almost everything; therefore, even 

deleted postings can be searched.  Never post any information or rumors known to be false about 

CCDDR, the Board of Directors, fellow employees, clients, vendors, other stakeholders, or other 

people working on behalf of CCDDR. 

Post Only Appropriate and Respectful Content 

Maintain the confidentiality of CCDDR’s trade secrets and private or confidential information such 

as internal reports, financial policies or procedures, client information, or other internal business-

related confidential communications. 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 

Express only personal opinions.  Employees shall never represent themselves as a spokesperson for 

CCDDR unless authorized to do so by the Executive Director.  If CCDDR is a subject of the 

content being created, employees are to be clear and open about the fact they are employees and 

make it clear that their views do not necessarily represent those of CCDDR, the Board of Directors, 

fellow employees, clients, vendors, other stakeholders, or people working on behalf of CCDDR.  If 

employees publish a blog or post online related to the work being performed or subjects associated 

with CCDDR, they are to make it clear they are not speaking on behalf of CCDDR.  It is best to 

include a disclaimer, such as “The postings on this site are my own and do not necessarily reflect 

the views of CCDDR.” 

 

Personal Use of Social Media at Work 

 

Personal use of social media while at work or while on working time is not permitted.  Do not use 

CCDDR’s email addresses to register on social networks or other sites for personal use. 

Media Contacts 

Employees should not speak to the media on CCDDR’s behalf unless authorized to do so by the 

Executive Director.  All media inquiries should be directed to them. 

Retaliation Is Prohibited 

CCDDR prohibits taking negative action against any employee for reporting a possible deviation 

from this policy or for cooperating in an investigation.  Any employee who retaliates against 

another employee for reporting a possible deviation from this policy or for cooperating in an 

investigation will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 

For More Information 

If employees or other stakeholders should have questions or need further guidance, please contact 

the Executive Director. 

 

 
 
REFERENCES: 
 

• CARF Standards Manual 


	Cover Page to Open Session
	Cover Page to Agenda
	Tentative Agenda for Open Session
	Cover Page to Open Session Minutes
	June 10th 2021 Open Session Board Minutes
	Cover Page to OSLCFDC Monthly Report
	OSLCFDC Monthly Report
	Cover Page to CLC Monthly Report
	CLC Monthly Report
	Cover Page to LAI Monthly Report
	LAI May External reports
	Cover Page to Support Coordination Report
	Support Coordination Report
	Cover Page to Employment Report
	Employment Workbook by SC
	Cover Page to Agency Economic Report
	Agency Economic Report
	Cover Page to CC Statement
	May credit card invoices for July Board Meeting__Redacted
	Cover Page to Resolutions
	Resolution 2021-18
	Resolution 2021-18 Attachment A
	Resolution 2021-19
	Resolution 2021-19 Attachment A
	Resolution 2021-20
	Resolution 2021-20 Attachment A
	Resolution 2021-21
	Resolution 2021-21 Attachment A

